
  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
                 “Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   
Hampton Inn and Suites 4301 Martin Way E. Olympia, WA 98516 

Thursday, November 14, 2019 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the 

discretion of the Chair.  Commissioners may take action on business items. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

  
PUBLIC MEETING  

Tab 1 
10:00 AM 

 

Call to Order                                                                                                 Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Welcome and Introductions   

• Moment of Silence 
Consent Agenda                                                                                                               (Action) 

• October 10, 2019 Commission Meeting Minutes  
• *New Licenses and Class III Employees 
• 2020 WSGC Purposed Meeting Schedule  

*Class III Employees/Snoqualmie & Cowlitz Tribes                                                   (Action) 
 
Staff Recognition  

• Commissioner Stearns Recognition for Dedicated Service 
• Staff Recognition-Julie Lies 30 years 
• Staff Recognition-Lori Boyd 30 years 

 
Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 

• G2E Discussion  
• House-Banked Cardroom Financial Statement 
• Centennial Accord 

Tab 2 
 

*Petition for Review-Christopher R. Dotson                                                               (Action)   
                                                                                   Kellen Wright, Assistant Attorney General 

Tab 3 
 

*Petition for Review-Gregory P. Means                                                                       (Action)   
                                                                                     Kellen Wright, Assistant Attorney General 

 
12:30-1:30 Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public                                                  Bud Sizemore, Chair 

Discuss Pending Criminal Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 

 
RULE UP FOR FINAL ACTION 

Tab 4 
 

*Petition to Adopt - Credit Union Raffles Packet                                                        (Action)  
                                                                                                 Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator  

RULE UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING 
Tab 5 

 
*Petition to Repeal - Poker Wager Limits                                                                    (Action)   
                                                                                                 Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 

Tab 6 
 

Gambling Commission Financial Update 
                                                                              Chris Stanley, Chief Financial Officer 



Tab 7 
 
 

*Special Olympics of Washington                                                                                  (Action)   
• 2019 Western Washington Enhanced Raffle Results 
• 2020 Western Washington Raffle Plan 

                                                                                                    Donna Khanhasa, Special Agent 
Tab 8 

 
AmVets  Tacoma Program Review 
                                                                                                              Greg Allen, Special Agent 

Tab 9 
 

Sports Gambling Presentation  
                                                                          Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

Tab 10 Problem Gambling Update 
• Problem Gambling Taskforce 
• Self-Exclusion Rule Making 

                                                 Roxanne Waldron, HCA, Problem Gambling Program Manager  
                                                                         Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

 Public Comment 
 Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3473.  

Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting 
 

Gambling Commission Federal Way  
501 S. 336th Street Suite 210 

Federal Way, WA 98003 
Friday, November 15, 2019 

 
9:00-11:30 

 
Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public                                                  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Discuss Pending Criminal Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 
                   

11:30-1:30 
 

Executive Director Evaluation – Closed to the Public 
                                                                                                          HR Director, Lisa Benavidez 

 
 

                                                                           

                                                                     



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

September Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hampton Inn and Suites  

4301 Martin Way E. 
Olympia, WA 98516 

Public Meeting  
October 10, 2019 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Chris Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway 
 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Brian Considine, Legal and 
Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Heather Songer, Public Information Officer; 
Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant; and Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General. Including 
TVW. 
 
Executive Session 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the October commission meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. and 
announced that the Commission would immediately go into executive session where the 
commissioners would discuss pending criminal investigations, tribal negotiations and litigations. 
He announced that executive session would go until 11:30 a.m. and the public meeting would 
reconvene at 12:30 p.m. At 10:37 a.m., Chair Sizemore had to leave executive session early. 
Commissioner Stearns adjourned executive session.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 12:32 p.m. and welcomed 
everyone to the Hampton Inn. Chair Sizemore mentioned that Commissioner Levy would be 
participating in the meeting via phone and Commissioner Patterson would not be joining the 
meeting. He asked for a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement officers who were lost 
in the line of duty since we last met.  
 
46 people attended the meeting.   
 
Tab 1 
Commissioner Stearns moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 4:0 
 
 
 



2 
 

Commissioner Troyer moved to approve the Class III certifications for the Snoqualmie and 
Cowlitz Tribes. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 3:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained. 
 
Director’s Report  

Director Trujillo referred the Commission to his written report and called attention to four 
items. He announced his appointment to the Washington Association of Sheriffs and Police 
Chiefs’ executive board as an active, non-municipal member. His term will expire May 2021. He 
provided an introduction of the new Gambling Commission chief information officer (CIO), 
Sayee Vaitheesvaran, who brings 25 years of technology and leadership experience from both 
private and government sectors to the Gambling Commission.  Sayee has undergraduate and 
graduate degrees in computer science, and a master’s degree in business administration. He is 
also a certified project management professional (PMP). He comes to us directly from WA 
Employment Security Department. Sayee has been an executive level team member, technology 
manager and leader of teams and supervisor of technology staff and vendors. He has experience 
in creating strategic technology plans and operational budgets, and in managing, developing and 
improving applications and security. Sayee also has experience in modernizing older technology 
systems.   Sayee will start on October 16, 2019. 
  
The statewide employee engagement survey currently circulating through the agency will run 
until October 31, 2019. We expect survey results from the Office of Financial Management in 
the spring. 
 
Lastly, because more and more people are accessing the Internet solely with smartphones, we are 
making our own My Account experience more mobile friendly. Users will soon notice that the 
layout is different as this is part of the redesign process. The new layout is expected to launch 
before the end of the year and staff are helping to assess the redesign by testing the redesigned 
platform from their computer. 
  
Commissioner Stearns congratulated Director Trujillo on his appointment to the Washington 
Association of Sheriffs and Police Chiefs.  

Tab 2 
Sports Gambling Discussion and Presentation 
Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM), Brian Considine presented the materials for this tab. 
LLM Considine mentioned that at the last meeting he told commissioners that sports gambling 
integrity would be discussed at the October meeting, while money laundering, the black market 
and criminal enforcement would be the focus at the November meeting 
 
Marquest Meeks, senior counsel for Major League Baseball (MLB), and Fred Rivera, general 
counsel for the Seattle Mariners, joined LLM Considine. Mr. Meeks shared a presentation on 
baseball and the value that the game brings to the community. He spoke about sports scandals 
and legalizing sports gambling. He shared that sports betting is legal in 13 states, and 38 states 
have bills in play. He spoke about five pillars that MLB/NBA/PGA believe support the 
foundation of a safe, robust and transparent sports betting market:  



3 
 

1) Cooperate with League investigations 
2) The Opt-Out Right; the right to make differential request to regulators to prevent wagers 

on certain events, activities, or leagues 
3) Official League Data Requirements 
4) The Royalty; 0.25% of the amount wagered on each leagues game events 
5) Mobile; a competitive mobile market is necessary for a transparent and robust sports 

betting market and the only way to curb the illegal betting market. The vast majority of 
bets placed in mature betting markets happens online or on mobile platforms. 
 

LLM Considine wrapped up the presentation with speaking about sports integrity and how the 
Gambling Commission can ensure that sport integrity continues should sports gambling be 
authorized in the state, including establishing its own sports integrity unit.  Director Trujillo 
clarified acronyms for the audience: SWIMA (Sports Wagering Integrity Monitoring 
Association), PASPA (Professional Amateur Sports Protection Act), NCLGS (National Council 
of Legislators from Guinean States), AGA (American Gaming Association.)   
 
Tab 3 
Petition for Review Nai C. Saechin 
Assistant Attorney General, Kellen Wright presented the materials for this tab. The licensee, 
Nai C. Saechin, filed a petition for review to the commissioners. Ms. Saechin challenges the 
administrative law judge’s initial order finding a violation occurred and revocation of her public 
card room employee license was warranted. Chair Sizemore called for a closed session for 
deliberation.  
 
After deliberation, the commissioners agreed with the administrative law judge’s decision to 
revoke Nai C. Saechin’s public card room employee license.  
 
Tab 4 
Petition for Review Yan Li  
 LLM Considine presented the materials for this tab. The parties came to a settlement agreement 
regarding the licensee’s petition for review.  LLM Considine presented the proposed order 
adopting the ALJ’s initial order, except for the penalty.  The agreed order drops the penalty from 
revocation to a one-year license suspension. 
 
Commissioners accepted the settlement agreement and signed proposed order as presented. 
 
Tab 5 
Rocky Mountain Elk Foundation (RMEF) 
Agent in Charge, (AIC) Jim Nicks presented the materials for this tab. At the September 
meeting, the commissioners delayed a vote, pending verification of legal firearms transfers. 
RMEF is requesting to exceed its $300,000 annual raffle limit, for its license year ending 
December 2019.  
 
AIC Nicks presented his unit’s findings from its investigation into firearms transfers from RMEF 
firearm raffles. 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve the request to exceed the 300k raffle prize limit 
presented by staff. 



4 
 

Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed 4:0 
 
Tab 6 
Staff Proposed Rule Changes 
Rules Coordinator Ashlie Laydon presented the materials for this tab. In 2017-18, the 
Gambling Commission amended its rules to simplify its reporting and licensing fee structure. 
Ms. Laydon reported that after a year of implementation, staff reviewed the rules and believes 
there are some changes and modifications needed for the new fee and reporting structure. Staff 
recommends amending the following changes to rules: 
 
WAC 230-03-085, WAC 230-03-265, WAC 230-05-112, WAC 230-05-138, WAC 230-05-142 
and WAC 230-07-090. 
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve initiate rulemaking to amend the above referenced 
rules as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
 
Tab 7 
Staff Proposed Rule Changes 
Rules Coordinator Laydon presented the materials for this tab. In 2017-18, the Gambling 
Commission amended its rules to simplify its licensing fee structure. Ms. Laydon reported that 
all licensees have now completed the transition from the old fee structure to the new fee 
structure. As a result, the following rules related to the old fee structure are no longer relevant 
and should be repealed: 
 
WAC 230-05-001, WAC 230-05-005, WAC 230-05-010, WAC 230-05-015, WAC 230-05-016, 
WAC 230-05-017, WAC 230-05-018, WAC 230-05-020, WAC 230-05-025, WAC 230-05-030  
and WAC 230-05-035.  
 
In 2017-18, the Gambling Commission amended its rules to simplify its reporting structure. All 
licensees have now completed the transition from activity reporting to quarterly license 
reporting. As a result, the following rules related to activity reporting are no longer relevant and 
should be repealed: 
 
WAC 230-05-102, WAC 230-06-124, WAC 230-06-150, WAC 230-06-170, WAC 230-07-155  
WAC 230-07-160, WAC 230-09-056, WAC 230-10-331, WAC 230-10-457, WAC 230-13-169 
WAC 230-14-284, WAC 230-15-200, WAC 230-15-205, WAC 230-16-220, and WAC 230-11-
095.  
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to approve initiate rulemaking to repeal the above referenced 
rules as presented by staff.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 

 



5 
 

Tab 8 
Staff Proposed Rule Making 
LLM Considine presented the materials for this tab. The Gambling Commission has been 
directed by the Legislature, through Substitute House Bill 1302, to draft rules establishing a 
statewide self-exclusion program. The Gambling Commission has discretion in establishing the 
scope, process and requirements of the self-exclusion program; however, it must comply with the 
following requirements: the program must allow persons to voluntarily exclude themselves from 
gambling at authorized gambling establishments that offer house-banked social card games; and 
any individual registered with the self-exclusion program is prohibited from participating in 
gambling activities associated with this program, and forfeits all moneys and things of value 
obtained by the individual, or owed to the individual, by an authorized gambling establishment 
as a result of prohibited wagers or gambling activities. The Gambling Commission may adopt 
rules for forfeiture of any moneys or things of value, including wagers, obtained by an 
authorized gambling establishment while an individual is registered with the self-exclusion 
program.   
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to approve to initiate rulemaking to adopt rules that establish a 
statewide self-exclusion program as required by RCW 9346.071 as recommended by staff.  
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 

After the vote, LLM Considine discussed possible options for rule-making moving forward.  The 
commissioners could dedicate time on their public meeting agendas, similar to the discussion on 
sports gambling, conduct work sessions and go through potential rule language in public 
meetings.  The commissioners could direct staff to form a work group, similar to the agency’s 
fee simplification rule-making, and the work group would meet and deliver policy decisions and 
possible rule language to the commissioners, when needed, during the 2020-21 meeting cycle.  
Lastly, the commissioners could adopt a hybrid approach holding a combination of public 
meeting work sessions and utilizing a work group for rule language. 
 
LLM Considine stated that he was identifying possible options for them to consider for 
discussion and their direction at the November meeting because staff would like to begin work 
on this topic starting in January.  There are essentially 10 meetings in 2020, and 5 meetings in 
2021, before the commissioners need to have final rules adopted. 
 
Chair Sizemore stated that he preferred the work group approach.  LLM Considine indicated that 
he would check-in with them at the November meeting and outline how the work group 
approach may best work for staff if that is the direction the commissioners choose. 
 
Tab 9 
Raffle Work Session 
Special Agent Supervisors Dan Frey and Sonja Dolson presented the materials for this tab. 
SAS Frey and Dolson gave a presentation on raffles, unlicensed raffles and answered questions 
regarding when a raffle license is required. They spoke about restrictions and provided a 
demonstration of the popular game “Joker Poker.”  
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment.  
 



6 
 

George Teeny read a letter from Doloers Chiechi, executive director of the Recreational Gaming 
Association, into the record; 
“Dear Dave,  
You may not be aware that the RGA was established in the early 80s, in fact, it was the RGA that 
changed the laws that created the Washington house bankcard room industry. As well, we were 
actively involved in the promulgation of the rules that helped shaped and regulate the unique 
industry that it is today.  
 
“Over the last two decades, we have worked tirelessly on behalf of the Washington card rooms. 
The relationships and contacts we've fostered with policy makers, regulators and staff proved 
imperative in our efforts to change rules at the Gambling Commission level and represent our 
members' interests before Washington's legislature. We believe these relationships help the 
industry overall.  
 
“We were also instrumental in leading the efforts towards the creation of responsible gaming 
policies and trainings for employees in the industry to identify problem gamblers. Since the early 
2000s, our work with the Evergreen Council on Problem Gambling and the state's Problem 
Gambling Advisory Committee helped bring this important issue to the forefront.  
 
“Throughout the years, we have fought diligently to hold the line on many detrimental proposals 
put forth against us. As you well know, we have been up against well-funded and, therefore, 
politically connected adversaries. 
 
“It is public knowledge that Maverick Gaming has purchased 19 licensed card rooms with 
several more in process. They have since terminated all agreements and memberships with the 
RGA. 
 
“It has come to our attention that Maverick Gaming has retained a very well connected and 
powerful lobbying team and hopes in moving the ball forward for non-tribal gaming. We hope 
that the rising tide of their efforts will raise all votes in that the interests of house banked card 
rooms licensees will continue to be monitored, protected and, perhaps, enhanced. 
 
“With that being said, it is with great sadness and remorse I write to inform you that the Board 
of Directors has unanimously decided to dissolve the RGA.  
 
“It is with my deepest sincerity and humility that I thank you one last time for your support over 
the last twenty plus years.  
 
“Sincerely,  
Dolores Chiechi” 
 
George Teeny added that he worked with Ms. Chiechi to make the industry strong. He stated 
that over the years it just hasn't panned out generally in their favor. He wished Maverick well in 
its endeavors.  
Chair Sizemore announced that the next commission meeting would be at the Hampton Inn and 
Suites in Lacey on November 14, 2019. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 















































































 CONTACT Julie Anderson (360) 486-3453 
Revised 10-31-2019  Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov  

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Proposed 2020 Commission Meetings Schedule 

January 9th & 10th   Hilton Garden Inn  
Thursday & Friday      2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501 
 

February 13th & 14th   Hilton Garden Inn  
Thursday & Friday      2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501 
     
March 12th & 13th   Hilton Garden Inn  
Thursday & Friday     2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501 
   
April 9th & 10th   Hilton Garden Inn  
Thursday & Friday     2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501  
 
May 14th & 15th   The Marcus Whitman Hotel 
Thursday & Friday  6 W Rose Street  
  Walla Walla, WA 99362 
     
June 23rd & 24th   The Davenport Grand 
Tuesday & Wednesday  333 West Spokane Falls Boulevard 
  Spokane, WA   
 
July  NO MEETING 
 

August 13th & 14th   Hotel Murano 
Thursday & Friday  1320 Broadway 
  Tacoma, WA 98402  
 
September 10th & 11th   The Heathman Lodge 
Thursday & Friday  7801 NE Greenwood Drive  
  Vancouver, WA 98662  
 

October 15th & 16th   Hilton Garden Inn  
 Thursday & Friday     2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501 
  
November 17th & 18th   Hilton Garden Inn  
Tuesday & Wednesday     2101 Henderson Park Lane S.E. 
       Olympia, WA 98501 
  
 

December  NO MEETING 

mailto:Julie.anderson@wsgc.wa.gov


 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS      EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Bud Sizemore, Chair      Senator Conway  
Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair   Senator Jeff Holy  
Christopher Stearns      Representative Brandon Vick 
Ed Troyer      Representative Shelley Kloba 
Alicia Levy      

 

FROM:  David Trujillo, Director 

SUBJECT: November Directors Report 

COMMISSION UPDATE 

On October 28, 2019, pursuant to RCW 9.46.040, Lieutenant Governor 
Cyrus Habib appointed Senator Jeff Holy to the Commission, filling a 
vacant position. Senator Holy lives in Spokane and represents the 6th 
Legislative District.  He earned his bachelor’s degree at Washington 
State University while serving in the Army and Army National Guard. 
He was with the Spokane Police Department for 22 years, including 
time spent in drug enforcement and vice.  He is also a graduate from 
Gonzaga University School of Law and has practiced law for 20 years.  
Senator Holy currently serves on the Senate Committees for Higher Ed 
& Workforce Development (Ranking Member), Early Learning & K-12 
Education, and Law and Justice.   
 
AGENCY UPDATE 

FORECAST (Updated with September final numbers) 

For September, license fee revenue continues to be higher than expected, with punchboards 
and pull-tabs leading the way.  We continue to underspend our budget, mostly due to the 12 
vacancies that we had at month-end versus the 7 we anticipated. Regarding our working capital 
balance, we are in good financial health for the next two years, as we expect to end FY20 with 
about $6.8M. This is an increase of $1.5M from the prior report, primarily due to the $1.25M 
fine recently attributed to a single licensee.   

 

 

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=dm4r36nK&id=79C4E18DBB3C6E921C172198481D6C0C0DD1CB07&thid=OIP.dm4r36nK2SlJ4_tzN3ZGVQHaJ4&mediaurl=http://jeffholy.src.wastateleg.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/49/2019/01/Sen-Holy_Jeff-2019_900x1200.jpg&exph=1200&expw=900&q=senator+jeff+holy&simid=608007827463210620&selectedIndex=0


 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

ENFORCEMENT 

We signed a settlement agreement with a licensee in response to an investigation into a 
loansharking and money laundering operation at two of its casinos. The settlement included a 
$1.25 million payment which will, in part, reimburse the agency for investigative and 
administrative costs.  This was a joint investigation with a local police department and began in 
2016 after we received numerous complaints regarding loansharking and money laundering 
activities.  In addition to the monetary penalty, the two owners have been barred from 
participation in any future gambling activities in Washington. Criminal convictions are pending 
as are many gambling license revocations. 

GLOBAL GAMING EXPO 

Staff had the opportunity to attend G2E again this year.  G2E is the 
annual gambling industry trade show and conference sponsored by 
the American Gaming Association.  The main focus of this year’s 
conference was sports wagering.  At the conference, we attended 
the US Sports Betting Forum, where the primary focus was on game 
integrity.  We also met with New Jersey sports wagering regulators 
who remembered our cyber/Internet enforcement efforts and want 
to continue working with us.  We met with other regulators and the 
primary message we are hearing is that the regulator focus is game 
and data integrity and their enforcement concern is money 
laundering. We also met with several sports wagering companies and 
sports book operators, and their main focus is on data integrity, 
compliance, reporting and knowledgeable personnel. We also met 
with test lab reps who are knowledgeable in the testing of 
equipment in the sports wagering arena.   

Chief Financial Officer Chris Stanley also attended and found it to be an “incredible learning 
experience.”  He attended each of the keynote addresses and was taken by the message that 
relationships matter more than the product being sold. Chris reflected on that in relation to our 
agency where we know the relationships we build with stakeholders are key to our success as 
regulators.  Chris attended a number of sessions on sports wagering and eSports, and his main 
takeaway is that we are living in the digital “wild west.” While the industry has prepared for 
sports wagering, regulators have not. Particularly with eSports, Chris is concerned about the 
lack of accountability and security around the data that’s being collected on children playing 



 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

these games.  For example, “Joe” plays socially for five years, starting when he’s fourteen. After 
five years, Joe meets a recruiter who selects him to be on competitive or local or professional 
eSports team. The moment Joe plays his first professional eSports match, the game 
manufacturer can set odds with five years of data the rest of the industry does not have.  This is 
different than high school and college sports where pre-professional play is known to the 
public.  Unless Joe was part of a competitive team or collegiate team, there is only the data 
collected on Joe by the game manufacturer when he was playing socially as a child.   

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SURVEY UPDATE 

We participated in this year’s statewide employee engagement survey.  The link was sent to 
staff on October 1 and the survey was available through October 31. While we only participate 
every other year, we have been a regular participant since it was established in 2006.  The 
purpose of the survey is to engage employees so that they find their work more meaningful and 
deliver better results, ultimately improving government performance.  This year, we had 92 
employees participate or about 87% of total staff participate. Results will be available in the 
coming months. 

TRIBAL RELATIONS 

New Agent Training 

We recently completed our final offering of New Agent Training for 2019.  The primary 
audience for this training is tribal gaming commissioners and tribal gaming agency staff. The 
training was conducted October 7 - 11 at the Muckleshoot Casino Training Center.  Among 
other courses, attendees learned about: the 1988 Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, the respective 
roles of the state gaming agency and the tribal gaming agency, tribal-state compacts, regulating 
tribal gaming operations, and our Criminal Enforcement Unit.  Attendees also learned about: 
internal controls, casino accounting, surveillance, regulating the Tribal Lottery System, licensing 
operations and cheating detection.  Attendees were asked to evaluate the instructors and 
course materials on a scale of 1 (low) to 5 (high).  On average, each individual course rated from 
4.62 to 4.84 with overall average of 4.73. 

Criminal History Record Inquiries 

In late October, we had a teleconference with representatives of the Washington State Patrol 
and Department of Justice – FBI (DOJ-FBI) to understand the current requirement issued by the 
National Indian Gaming Commission which prohibits tribes from sharing fingerprint-based 



 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

information results with us.  In short, DOJ-FBI said such information is not the tribe’s to share.  
They are an authorized recipient but are not authorized to share with us. Further, it does not 
matter if we are authorized to request/receive such info via state statue and the tribes are 
authorized to request/receive the same through a federal process. The information does not 
fall within DOJ-FBI’s own “agency related doctrine” because the two processes cannot cross 
state/federal lines even if the information is used for the same purpose.  We asked DOJ-FBI to 
consider the IGRA citations which say the negotiated compact may include provisions related to 
the application of criminal and civil laws and regulations of the Indian tribe or the state that are 
directly related to, and necessary for, the licensing and regulation of such activity and the 
allocation of criminal and civil jurisdiction between the State and the Indian tribe necessary for 
the enforcement of such laws and regulations.  In addition, we also asked for a copy of a legal 
opinion that they referenced during the call so that we could better understand why the 
agency-related doctrine does not apply.  More information to follow. 

UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLAN 2018-2019 

1. Increasing the Commission's Role in Helping People Suffering from Gambling Disorders.   

On-call employee John Chinn will be working on this project while a facilitator is being selected 
through the Request for Proposal (RFP) process, and he may continue thereafter as a Gambling 
Commission resource.  Mr. Chinn successfully oversaw our “Building Restack Project,” which 
was completed at the end of October.  He has prepared two separate (but related) project 
management timelines for the Self-Exclusion and the Problem Gambling Task Force Legislative 
obligations.  These timelines have been distributed to key staff for comment and feedback. 

Problem Gambling Task Force Update: Our agency and the Health Care Authority have 
completed interagency agreements on the general terms and conditions that we will operate 
under to implement the Problem Gambling Task Force.  We have also agreed on how funds will 
be transferred from our agency to Health Care Authority for the purpose of contracting with a 
task force facilitator.  The agreement also includes updating commissioners at public meetings.  
The RFP was posted to the WEBS site (WA Electronic Business Solution) and will close on 
November 15, 2019.   

Stakeholders will have, or will soon receive, an invitation to participate on the task force. The 
invitation summarizes responsibilities of participants and outlines potential areas for 
recommendations to the Legislature, such as: 1) how to initiate a state prevalence study on 
adult gambling and problem gambling; 2) expanding state funding for prevention, treatment, 



 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

and recovery services to address the need for these programs; 3) steps the state should take to 
improve the current licensing and certification of problem gambling providers to meet the 
current and projected future demand for services; and regarding additional problem gambling 
areas for consideration and any actions needed to ensure the state and/or regulatory agencies 
are effectively addressing problem gambling. As of now, workgroup activities will likely include 
attending six to eight task force quarterly meetings from January 2020 through June 2021. 
Meeting locations will be scheduled in Olympia, Seattle I-5 Corridor and in Central/Eastern 
Washington. All meetings are expected to have a remote participation option and call-in 
capability.  The first meeting is planned to take place in January 2020. 

Self-Exclusion: John Chinn has completed an initial scope statement for self-exclusion. This 
scope statement has been referred to key staff for comment and feedback. Specifically, the 
statement sets out five objectives and thirteen goals that will help assure we have a deliberate 
and methodical process that obtains feedback from all stakeholders and also begins to 
contemplate how the self-exclusion process will interface with the Problem Gambling Task 
Force.  Once finalized, the scope statement and timeline will be included as a part of this 
report.   

2. Strengthening Legislative Relationships. 

Annual Report: We have prepared a draft of the annual report which was previously sent out to 
you electronically for comment and review before finalizing.  We are compiling statistics and 
preparing for publication this quarter. 

Sports Wagering: We continue to tactically and strategically prepare for legislative questions 
about sports wagering. We are preparing because of the three sports wagering bills presented 
in the 2019 legislative session.  To that end, we have a team of personnel from across agency 
lines that are looking at the scenario “What if sports wagering is authorized in the 2020 
session?”  Given the movement across the country, we fail in our due diligence if we do not 
prepare for, and be the best resource we can be for, the Legislature and other government 
officials, including elected tribal leaders considering sports wagering as economic source of 
revenue for government services.  It is our desire that the sports wagering process and policy 
discussion be open and transparent to the extent possible, and we do not want government 
leaders to say “we weren’t told this could happen,” or “you didn’t tell us this would happen,” or 
something similar.   



 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

We are visiting states with state regulatory agencies that have implemented, or will soon 
implement, sports wagering regulatory programs.  Our first regulatory meeting was at the 
Oregon Lottery Commission.  Oregon’s mobile wagering program was implemented last month 
and wagers are allowed on football, basketball, baseball, soccer, golf and NASCAR, but not on 
college sports.  Our second regulatory meeting was at the Mississippi Gaming Commission. The 
state launched sports wagering in August 2018, so it has completed one full year of operation.  
During the week of October 20, staff attended sports wagering courses sponsored UNLV, and 
met with Nevada Gaming Control Board representatives and various sport wagering operators.  
We also have visits planned in December to meet with regulators from New Jersey and 
Pennsylvania, as well as various providers and operators.  We are planning two additional trips 
in 2020 to Indiana and Iowa.   

3. Staff Continuity and Succession Planning 

Behavioral Competencies: Please recall these competencies were updated when staff were 
asked the question, “What are the behavioral competencies that you would want to see in your 
colleagues?” In other words, what attributes do you want your co-workers to demonstrate?  All 
staff had the opportunity to provide input.  Agency supervisors and managers formalized these 
behaviors into the current agency behavioral competencies that have been incorporated into all 
staff performance development plans.   

Agent Recruitment:  For the first time, we have contracted out a portion of our agent 
recruitment and hiring program to Public Safety Testing (PST).  While we retain control of the 
recruitment process, all special sgent recruitment applicants will need to begin the hiring 
process through PST which will conduct the physical testing and the written exam.  We will 
conduct the interview andbackground investigation, and will coordinate the polygraph, 
psychological medical exams and the drug test.  This will greatly enhance our exposure to those 
wanting a career in law enforcement, as only online application is needed to have an 
applicant’s scores sent the available departments selected by the applicants.   

Growth and Development: Supervisors are ensuring they speak with their respective team 
members in a one-on-one setting to discuss professional/personal growth and development 
goals, how individual goals can be accomplished, and how they align with agency/unit goals. 

4. Strengthen Stakeholder Relationships 

We continue to increase our communication externally and this is demonstrated by the 
increasing numbers of meetings that include stakeholders.  We continued our increased 



 
 

                                   STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 

PO Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360) 486-3440 

attendance at licensee, tribal, and public events and meetings.  We continue to consult with 
tribes on a government-to-government level, and continue to enjoy one of the nation’s better 
state-tribal relationships. We are meeting with prosecutors from across the state and may have 
an educational component at a future Washington Association of Prosecuting Attorneys 
conference. One of two agency request legislation items, which will be discussed later, is for the 
benefit of stakeholders. 

Respectfully,  

Dave 
 
David E. Trujillo,CPA, CGMA 
Director / Chief of Enforcement 
Washington State Gambling Commission 
 

 















 Christopher T. Stearns 

 1163 32nd St NE 

 Auburn, WA 98002             

 cstearns@hobbsstraus.com 

  

 
October 30, 2019 

 

 

 

Keith Swenson, Director of Boards & Commissions 

Office of Governor Jay Inslee 

PO Box 40002 

Olympia, WA 98504-0002 

 

Dear Mr. Swenson, 

 

I am writing to notify you that I intend to resign as Commissioner from the Washington State 

Gambling Commission on November 18, 2019 to return to private practice as a Native American 

rights attorney as well as to join the Auburn City Council early next year. 

 

It has been a great privilege to serve on the Gambling Commission as a Commissioner and as 

Chairman. Working with my fellow Commissioners and the exceptional Commission staff led by 

Dave Trujillo has been an extraordinarily rewarding experience. 

 

I am grateful to Governor Inslee for having given me the opportunity to be involved with these 

remarkable people and this special institution. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Chris Stearns 

 

 

 

Cc: Bud Sizemore, Chair, WA State Gambling Commission 

 Dave Trujillo, Director, WA State Gambling Commission 









 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 
 

 

November 1, 2019 

 

 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  

  Bud Sizemore, Chair 

  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 

Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

 

FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

  Legal and Records Division 

 

SUBJECT:  Christopher R. Dotson – CR 2018-00114 
  Petition for Review Materials – November 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 

 
 
Licensee Christopher Dotson filed a Petition for Review to the Commissioners in the above-
referenced case. Mr. Dotson challenges the Administrative Law Judge’s Initial Order finding a 
violation(s) occurred and revocation of his public card room employee license.   
 
Enclosed in your Commission Meeting packet is the ALJ’s initial Order, Mr. Dotson’s Petition for 
Review; staff’s response filed by Assistant Attorney General Kellen Wright; and the 
Commission’s March 2019 order vacating the Licensee’s default.  For reference, the complete case 
record, including audio recordings of prehearing conferences, was sent to you by e-containing a 
link to a secure web portal where you can access the entire case file. 
 































































 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 
 

 

November 4, 2019 

 

 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  

  Bud Sizemore, Chair 

  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 

Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

 

FROM: Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

  Legal and Records Division 

 

SUBJECT:  Gregory P. Means – CR 2017-01110 
  Petition for Review Materials – November 14, 2019 Commission Meeting 

 
 
The Licensee, Gregory Means filed a Petition for Review to the Commissioners in the above-
referenced case. Mr. Means challenges the Administrative Law Judge’s Initial Order finding a 
violation(s) occurred and revocation of his public card room employee license.   
 
Enclosed in your Commission Meeting packet is the ALJ’s initial Order, Mr. Means’ Petition for 
Review filed by his attorney Bryan Hershman; and staff’s response filed by Assistant Attorney 
General Greg Rosen.  For reference, the complete case record, including audio recordings of 
prehearing conferences, was sent to you by e-containing a link to a secure web portal where you 
can access the entire case file. 
 





































































































































































































































 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 4: NOVEMBER, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.                       Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

Bold = Changes made since September, 2019 Commission Meeting. 
At the February, 2019 Commission Meeting, Commissioners directed staff to approve Numerica Credit 
Union for a raffle license. At that time, staff was also directed to draft rules to allow credit unions to obtain 
a raffle license.  
In April, 2019, the Commission began issuing licenses to credit unions when Numerica Credit Union 
received its gambling license.  The license was issued pursuant to RCW 9.46.0209(2)(a) and consistent with 
the purpose of RCW 9.46.0315. However, current raffle and licensing rules do not distinguish credit unions 
from nonprofits even though there are some organizational structural differences than those identified in 
RCW 9.46.0209(1).  Additionally, current raffle rules need minor changes to clarify how credit unions can 
offer members-only raffles consistent with RCW 9.46.0209(2) and RCW 9.46.0315. 
Attachments: 

• WAC 230-11-013  
• WAC 230-03-146  
• WAC 230-05-160 

Stakeholder Outreach 

Draft rule language was sent to Numerica Credit Union for review on August 14, 2019. No feedback was 
received.  

Staff Recommendation 

Final Action. 

Effective Date 

31 days after filing with the Office of the Code Reviser – expected on or about December 16, 2019. 

 

 
Rule Petition to Adopt   

WAC 230-11-013- Conducting a raffle by a credit union. 
WAC 230-03-146- Applying for a raffle license by a credit union. 
WAC 230-05-160- Charitable or nonprofit organization fees. 

 
November, 2019 – Final Action 

September, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 
April, 2019 – Petition to Initiate Rule-Making 

 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 5: NOVEMBER, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.                       Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Murray McKinney, Bothell, Washington 

Background 

Murray McKinney submitted a petition to repeal WAC 230-15-135- Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked 
card games. The petitioner feels that the role of the Gambling Commission is to prevent cheating and 
player abuse but not to limit wager amounts for responsible players. The petitioner believes that this rule 
change would allow larger games which would recruit better players to those games, and would protect 
weaker players at lower limit tables.  
Maximum single wager limits have increased over time, as reflected in the table below. 

Maximum Amount of a Single Wager 
 Card Room Class F Endorsed House-Banked 
Prior to 2008 $25 $25 $25 
January 1, 2008 $40 $40 $40 
January 1, 2013 $40 $40 

$100 for Texas Hold’em 
$40 

$100 for Texas Hold’em 
September 26, 2016 $40 $100 $300 
December 23, 2016 $40 $300 $300 

This proposed change would impact all card room licensees. As of October, 2019, there are 3 Class F 
endorsed licensees, 44 house-banked card room licensees, and 209 commercial and nonprofit nonhouse-
banked card rooms. 
Attachments: 

• Petition 
• WAC 230-15-135  
• Stakeholder Feedback 

Stakeholder Outreach 

This petition was sent out to all cardroom licensees and also posted on the Gambling Commission’s 
website. We have received five responses in support of removing limits and one response in support of 
keeping the limits the same as other table games unless surveillance requirements are required for 
nonhouse-banked card games. 

Staff Recommendation 

Under the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, the Commission must take action on a 
petition within 60 days of receiving it. Your options are: 

 
Rule Petition to Repeal   

WAC 230-15-135- Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card games. 
 

November, 2019 – Commission Petition Review 
September, 2019 – Petition to Initiate Rule-Making 



1) Initiate rule-making proceedings by filing the rule as proposed for further discussion; or 
2) Deny the petition, in writing, a) stating the reasons for the denial, specifically addressing the 

concerns stated in the petition, or b) indicating alternative means by which the agency will address 
the concerns raised in the petition.  

Staff recommends denial of this petition. All Washington authorized gambling activities are limited in 
nature and scope by RCW 9.46.010 and therefore have wagering limits. 

 



Rule Petition Type: Amend Rule – I am requesting WSGC to change an existing rule. 
     
List rule number (WAC) if known:  WAC 230-15-135 
    
I am requesting the following change: Remove entire WAC Section WAC 230-15-135 and all limits to bet 
sizing for Poker. 
     
This change is needed because: I depend on the gaming commission to make sure poker games a void of 
cheating and player abuse.  I do not depend on the gaming commission to nanny the size of Poker 
Games I play with my 6 figure income.  I and many other residents can play responsibly at higher limits 
and the State’s Efforts should be focused on helping problem gamblers and not restricting responsible 
residents. 
     
The effect of this rule change will be: Larger Poker Games with Larger Rakes that could also translate to 
large casino profits and taxes for the state.  Allowing casinos to run larger games would also pull better 
players to higher limit games and thus protect weaker players at lower limit tables.  Currently all the 
good players and weak players are all playing $1/3$ NL as the 300 dollar limit makes higher steaks 
games pointless. 
 



WAC (10/21/2019 07:33 AM) [ 1 ] NOT FOR FILING 

 WAC 230-15-135  Wagering limits for nonhouse-banked card 

games.  Card room licensees must not exceed these wagering 

limits: 

(1) Poker - 

(a) There must be no more than five betting rounds in any 

one game; and 

(b) There must be no more than four wagers in any betting 

round, for example, the initial wager plus three raises; and 

(c) The maximum amount of a single wager must not exceed 

forty dollars; however, Class F and house-banked card game 

licensees may offer a single wager not to exceed three hundred 

dollars; 

(2) Games based on achieving a specific number of points -

 Each point must not exceed five cents in value; 

(3) Ante - No more than the maximum wager allowed for the 

first betting round for any game, except for Panguingue (Pan). 

The ante may, by house rule: 

(a) Be made by one or more players, but the total ante may 

not exceed the maximum wager allowed for the first betting 

round; and 



WAC (10/21/2019 07:33 AM) [ 2 ] NOT FOR FILING 

(b) Be used as part of a player's wager; 

(4) Panguingue (Pan) - The maximum value of a chip must not 

exceed ten dollars. An ante must not exceed one chip. We 

prohibit doubling of conditions. Players going out may collect 

no more than two additional chips for going out from each 

participating player. 

[Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070. WSR 18-05-029, § 230-15-135, 

filed 2/9/18, effective 7/1/18. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070 and 9.46.0201. WSR 16-23-153, § 230-15-135, filed 

11/22/16, effective 12/23/16; WSR 16-18-024, § 230-15-135, filed 

8/26/16, effective 9/26/16. Statutory Authority: RCW 9.46.070 

and 9.46.0282. WSR 12-21-048 (Order 680), § 230-15-135, filed 

10/12/12, effective 1/1/13; WSR 09-21-013 (Order 658), § 230-15-

135, filed 10/9/09, effective 11/9/09. Statutory Authority: RCW 

9.46.070. WSR 09-09-056 (Order 642), § 230-15-135, filed 

4/10/09, effective 7/1/09; WSR 07-21-116 (Order 617), § 230-15-

135, filed 10/22/07, effective 1/1/08; WSR 07-09-033 (Order 

608), § 230-15-135, filed 4/10/07, effective 1/1/08.] 



From: dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov on behalf of WSGC Web
To: Rules Coordinator (GMB)
Subject: Request for Public Comment Submission from wsgc.wa.gov
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 5:19:03 PM

Submitted on Friday, September 27, 2019 - 5:18pm
Submitted by anonymous user: 172.103.152.96
Submitted values are:

Select a Topic: Petition for Rule Change: Poker Wager Limits
Name: Alexandra Chauran
Organization: 
Comments: Please remove betting limits for poker games. No limit is a game enjoyed all over the world. Thank you.

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1160

mailto:dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov
mailto:no-reply@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:rules.coordinator@wsgc.wa.gov
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1160


From: dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov on behalf of WSGC Web
To: Rules Coordinator (GMB)
Subject: Request for Public Comment Submission from wsgc.wa.gov
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 5:18:53 PM

Submitted on Friday, September 27, 2019 - 5:18pm
Submitted by anonymous user: 107.77.205.221
Submitted values are:

Select a Topic: Petition for Rule Change: Poker Wager Limits
Name: Austin
Organization: 
Comments: The poker betting limit makes high stakes poker games obsolete because you can only bet $300 at a
time. This leads to more underground games to circumvent this law which is way worse for the people that this law
is trying to protect in the first place.

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1159

mailto:dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov
mailto:no-reply@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:rules.coordinator@wsgc.wa.gov
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1159


From: Cory Thompson
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: Re: Washington State Gambling Commission - Notice of Rule Petition
Date: Friday, September 27, 2019 11:31:49 AM
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.gif
image003.png
image004.jpg
image005.png

Ashlie,

I think we should keep the limits the same as in the table games area unless there are more
stringent rules put in place for the security of poker rooms. Currently, they are not required for
poker rooms. There should also be a requirement for manned surveillance rooms to
accommodate any issues with poker, especially dealing with a Player Supported Jackpot.

:o),
Cory Thompson

On Fri, Sep 27, 2019 at 11:26 AM Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>
wrote:

Good morning,

This email is to inform you that the Washington State Gambling Commission has received
the attached petition for rulemaking. RCW 34.05.330 is the law that governs these types of
petitions and it requires that an agency hear a petition within 60 days of receiving the
petition. This petition will be heard by the Commission at the November 14th Commission
meeting in Olympia, Washington. More details regarding this meeting can be found here.
The agenda and materials should be posted approximately a week prior to the meeting.

If you would like to comment on this petition, you can do so by responding to me directly or
by submitting a public comment through our website here. Feel free to contact me if you
have any questions.

Thank you,

Ashlie Laydon

Rules Coordinator | Legal and Records Division

Washington State Gambling Commission

P.O. Box 42400 | Olympia, WA 98504-2400

( (360) 486-3473 | * ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov

mailto:crapsdlr@gmail.com
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=34.05.330
https://www.wsgc.wa.gov/events/november-2019-commission-meeting
https://www.wsgc.wa.gov/news/request-public-comment
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov

Washington State

GAMBLING

ComMISSION
Protect the public by ensuring that gambling is legal and honest.






















From: George Teeny
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Cc: Jo England; DChiechi@rga-wa.org
Subject: FW: response to wac change
Date: Thursday, October 3, 2019 11:48:16 AM

 
 
Afternoon Ashlie
I am responding to the change request for WAC 230-15-135.
 
Raising the limits in poker to “no-limit” play is a good idea for all gaming interests throughout the
state, both tribal and non-tribal.

1)      “No limit” is the game of choice for the majority of players that play throughout the
country.
2)      In Washington State “no limit” is the number one game type requested by players
who frequent, and do not frequent, our state poker rooms.
3)      My club borders Oregon, and there are approx. two to three thousand players in
the Portland area that no longer play in Washington because we don’t offer no-limit.
These and many other players would prefer to play in a highly regulated, customer
protected environment that Washington State offers, but end up playing in illegally ran
cardrooms in Oregon where the clubs are unregulated, untaxed, no employee
protection and with no government or policing oversite.
4)      Obviously, the more customers who play in Washington rooms the larger the
revenue which translates to more taxes for the local jurisdictions, more
employees/more benefits, larger demands for vender services and more.
5)      The customers gravitate to the limits they feel most comfortable with.
6)      No-limit games come in different “sizes” simply by adjusting the “blinds” that are
offered (e.g. lower no-limit players will play in games that offer $1/$2 blinds, while
people that wish to play higher no limit can play in games that offer $5/$5/$10 blind
structure).
7)      Of all of the games that are offered in this state, poker is probably the most
protected. Not only do the games have center dealers, but after every played hand the
deck is shuffled, a fresh shuffled deck is then put in use, the internal controls for dealing
and shuffling are well established, there are floor people supervising all the games
continually and the players themselves monitor the game extremely close for any
irregularities.
8)      However, If there are still protection concerns, the state should mandate manned
surveillance cardrooms.  

 
If you have any questions about what I have written or would like to have further discussions please
don’t hesitate to reach out to me at:
Work number – 360-573-6442  ext 321
Email address – gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
 
george teeny

mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:jengland@thephoenixcasino.com
mailto:DChiechi@rga-wa.org
mailto:gteeny@thephoenixcasino.com


From: dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov on behalf of WSGC Web
To: Rules Coordinator (GMB)
Subject: Request for Public Comment Submission from wsgc.wa.gov
Date: Thursday, October 31, 2019 6:11:49 PM

Submitted on Thursday, October 31, 2019 - 6:11pm
Submitted by anonymous user: 67.183.193.211
Submitted values are:

Select a Topic: Petition for Rule Change: Poker Wager Limits
Name: Phil
Organization: 
Comments: I'm a Washington resident and I agree with lifting the poker wager limits and repealing WAC 230-15-
135 (1) A,B, and C. The limit is silly and as a result I just go to play in other states. Conceptually the caps on betting
make no real sense either. You can gamble the same amount of money, it just might take you a few more hands to
do so.

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1224

mailto:dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov
mailto:no-reply@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:rules.coordinator@wsgc.wa.gov
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1224


From: dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov on behalf of WSGC Web
To: Rules Coordinator (GMB)
Subject: Request for Public Comment Submission from wsgc.wa.gov
Date: Friday, November 1, 2019 4:39:33 AM

Submitted on Friday, November 1, 2019 - 4:39am
Submitted by anonymous user: 35.137.236.164
Submitted values are:

Select a Topic: Petition for Rule Change: Poker Wager Limits
Name: Martin Shapiro
Organization: 
Comments: This petition makes some very salient points. Poker games without wager limits are run safely and
successfully in the other states where poker gaming is licensed and regulated. Wager limits do not provide
protection to the compulsive gambler, who can still find many opportunities and venues to indulge their impulses.
Adherence to the standard protections of personnel training, help line and a coordinated exclusion program at
licensed facilities are effective deterrents to problem gambling; the wager limits are not needed for this purpose. As
the petitioner posits, the wager limits force players of all means to play together at the same stakes. This creates an
environment where players of lower means can be "out-gunned" at the tables, making the games untennable for such
players. In addition, the foremost public mandate for licensed gaming is to provide a safe gaming venue for players
through regulation of the games. With the wager limits in place, higher-stakes players may
continue to engage in poker gaming outside the licensed facilities in underground games, where they are not subject
to such limits. Eliminating the wager limits will lead to many such players opting for the safer games at the licensed
facilities, which will fulfill the public mandate as well as increase revenues for the state through higher participation
rates in licensed gaming.

The results of this submission may be viewed at:
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1226

mailto:dan.heisel@watech.wa.gov
mailto:no-reply@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:rules.coordinator@wsgc.wa.gov
https://wsgc.wa.gov/node/19/submission/1226


Financial Update
November 14, 2019
Christopher Stanley
Chief Financial Officer



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

FY 2020 is starting well

General revenues have out-performed expectations by over 4.2 percent, which 
does not include the $1.25M fine collected on September 30.

Total Revenue by Category 
2020 Expected 

Revenue 
2020 Actual 

Revenue 
2020 Projected 

Remaining 
2020 Revenue 

Variance 

Activity Licenses - Commercial $          4,630,530 $          1,287,077 $          3,499,540 $             156,087 
Activity Licenses - Non-Profit $             955,285 $             284,360 $             725,675 $                54,750 
Individual Licenses $          1,062,192 $             299,065 $             796,644 $                33,517 
Vendor Licenses $             454,567 $             191,038 $             335,032 $                71,503 
Tribal-Related Activities $          6,257,720 $          1,725,716 $          4,688,290 $             156,286 
Other Sources $             292,632 $          1,427,042 $             219,474 $          1,353,884 

Agency Total $       13,652,926 $          5,214,298 $       10,264,655 $          1,826,027 

FY 2020 Revenue by Category/Subsource



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

FY 2020 is starting well

Agency Total by Object 
2020 Total 
Budgeted 2020 Spent To-Date 

2020 Projected 
Remaining 

2020 Variance
(Bd-Sp-Pr=Var) 

FTEs 119.25 107.05 12.20 
Salaries $        9,390,636 $        1,974,866 $         7,042,977 $            372,793 
Benefits $        3,340,008 $           721,715 $         2,505,006 $            113,287 
Contracts $              14,700 $                       - $               11,025 $                 3,675 
Goods & Services $        2,535,036 $           801,270 $         1,901,277 $          (167,511)
Travel $           313,560 $              61,173 $            235,170 $              17,217 
Capital Expenses $           527,784 $              27,595 $            395,838 $            104,351 
Grants & Benefits $                2,712 $                    950 $                 2,074 $                  (312)

Agency Total $     16,124,436 $        3,587,569 $      12,093,367 $            443,500 

FY 2020 Agency / Object-Level View

The agency has underspent its budget for FY 2020 by 2.75% due to standard vacancy savings.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

FY 2020 Balance Sheet

Actual/Projected Projected Projected Projected
FY20 FY21 Biennium Total FY22 FY23 Biennium Total

Starting Working Capital Balance 7,048,652 6,846,669 5,039,572 3,404,738
Revenue 15,478,953 14,169,090 29,648,043 14,594,162 15,031,987 29,626,149
Expenditures* 15,680,936 15,976,187 31,657,123 16,228,996 17,040,446 33,269,443

Revenue minus Expenditures (201,983) (1,807,098) (2,009,080) (1,634,834) (2,008,459) (3,643,293)
Ending Working Capital Balance 6,846,669 5,039,572 3,404,738 1,396,278
FTEs 107.1 119.3 119.3 119.3

WCB Target (2 months Exp) 2,613,489 2,662,698 2,704,833 2,840,074

Other Funds: Actual FY20 Projected FY21 Biennium Total Projected FY22 Projected 23 Biennium Total
Federal Seizure (141) $76,000 $0 $76,000 $0 $0 $76,000
State Seizures (226) $569,659 $0 $569,659 $0 $0 $569,659
Industrial Ins Prem Ref (03K) $230,414 $0 $230,414 $0 $0 $230,414

Gambling Revolving Account (884-6)
Projected Balance Sheet – 17-19 and 19-21 Biennium – 114 FTEs

*Expenditures in other accounts are not included. High-level balances are below.



$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

$9

$10

$11

$12

$13

$14

$15

$16

$17

$18

FY
98

FY
99

FY
00

FY
01

FY
02

FY
03

FY
04

FY
05

FY
06

FY
07

FY
08

FY
09

FY
10

FY
11

FY
12

FY
13

FY
14

FY
15

FY
16

FY
17

FY
18

FY
19

FY
20

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

Do
lla

rs
 (i

n 
m

ill
io

ns
)

Expenditures Revenue Year-End Working Capital Balance Target WCB (2 months Exp.)

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Looking to the Future…
Gambling Revolving Fund Revenue, Expenditures, and Working Capital Reserve: FY 1998 – FY 2023

*FY 2021 – FY 2023 figures are estimates, not actuals



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

“Begin at the beginning,” the King said, very 
gravely, “and go on till you come to the end: 

then stop.” — Chapter 12, Alice in Wonderland

Taking a deeper dive into licensee revenue and future projections



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Non-Tribal Licensees Over Time

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

$18,000,000

$20,000,000

$0

$100,000,000

$200,000,000

$300,000,000

$400,000,000

$500,000,000

$600,000,000

$700,000,000

$800,000,000

$900,000,000

$1,000,000,000

FY 2010 FY 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018

Gross Gambling Receipts by License Type: FY 2010 through FY 2018
*Washington State Gambling Commission Expenditures by Fiscal Year Reflected on Black Line



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Fees Paid by Licensees Over Time

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018



Questions?
Christopher Stanley, CGFM
Chief Financial Officer
(360) 870-7282
Christopher.Stanley@wsgc.wa.gov



STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington  98504-2400     (360) 486-3440    1-800-345-2529     FAX (360)486-3631 

November 14, 2019 

TO: EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Senator Steve Conway
Senator Jeff Holy 
Representative Brandon Vick 
Representative Shelley Kloba 

FROM: 

COMMISSIONERS  
Bud Sizemore, Chair  
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Chris Stearns  
Ed Troyer    
Alicia Levy 

Donna Khanhasa, Special Agent 
Licensing Unit 

SUBJECT: Special Olympics of Washington – 2019 Western Washington Enhanced Raffle 
Results 

At the November 2018 commission meeting, the Commissioners approved a plan submitted by 
the Special Olympics of Washington (SOWA) to conduct an enhanced raffle in Western 
Washington.  SOWA held the grand prize drawing on May 10, 2019.     

In accordance with WAC 230-11-103, charitable or nonprofit licensees conducting enhanced 
raffles must have an independent audit conducted on each enhanced raffle and the associated 
smaller raffles.  SOWA submitted the auditor’s report in accordance with the rule. 

The purpose of this memo is to report the results of the enhanced raffle and the agents’ review.  
This is the seventh enhanced raffle that SOWA has reported on. 

The grand prize offered was a dream home located in the Puget Sound area or an annuity of 
$4,000,000 paid over 20 years or a one-time cash payment of $2,800,000 based on 65,000 tickets 
being sold.  If fewer than 62,000 tickets were sold, the grand prize winner would receive a choice 
between a sum equal to 50% of the net raffle proceeds paid as an annuity over 20 years, not to 
exceed $4,000,000, or a one-time cash payment of up to 70% of the annuity value, not to exceed 
$2,800,000.   

The results of the May 10, 2019, enhanced raffle and the associated raffles are as follows:   
Tickets Sold Sales of Raffle 

Tickets 
Prizes Awarded Other Expenses Net Proceeds from 

Enhanced Raffle 
25,952 $3,688,880 $1,045,999 $1,741,348 $901,533 



Commissioners and ExOfficios 
November 14, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

Drawing details and prizes: 
Drawing Date Location Prizes Awarded 

Early Bird 1 March 7, 2019 SOWA Office $50,000 
Early Bird 2 April 11, 2019 SOWA Office  $10,000 
Multi-Ticket May 10, 2019 Seattle Center $50,000 
Add-On (50/50) May 10, 2019 Seattle Center $232,940 
Grand Prize May 10, 2019 Seattle Center Grand prize: $399,386 

2nd prize: $50,000 
3rd prize: $10,000 
4th to 10th prize: $5,000* 

*In addition to prizes noted above, there were an additional 3,240 prizes awarded, with prize
values ranging from $50 to $800.

Use of Proceeds: 
Net proceeds of $901,533 from the Enhanced Raffle will benefit SOWA by supporting program 
activities. 

Regulatory Review: 
An agent from the Regulatory Unit conducted an inspection of the enhanced raffle.  Prior to the 
inspection, he reviewed the approved enhanced raffle plan and reviewed the case reporting 
system for compliance history.  No material findings were noted.  

The agent compared the enhanced raffle ticket sales to the bank statements and verified the 
money from all ticket sales was deposited. The agent noted 25,952 tickets were sold for the 
grand prize drawing and 32,954 tickets were sold for the 50/50 drawing.  The agent contacted the 
top tier Grand Prize Drawing winners, the Early Bird #1 prize winner, the Early Bird #2 prize 
winner, Multi-Ticket Drawing winner, and the 50/50 Add-On prize winner.  All winners 
contacted confirmed they received their prizes.   

The agent noted the total grand prize amount awarded was $399,385.79 in the form of a 20 year 
annuity.  In addition, the 50/50 Add-On prize awarded was $232,940.  No discrepancies in the 
calculation method of the grand prize or 50/50 Add-On prize were noted. 

The agent reviewed the licensee’s gambling records to verify accuracy and compliance with the 
WACs. He noted no discrepancies.  

The agent confirmed that SOWA operated the enhanced raffle within the plan approved by the 
Commissioners.     

Regulatory Actions: 
There were no state or federal regulatory actions taken in relation to this enhanced raffle. 



STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington  98504-2400     (360) 486-3440    1-800-345-2529     FAX (360)486-3631 

November 14, 2019 

TO: COMMISSIONERS  
Bud Sizemore, Chair  
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Christopher Stearns  

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Senator Steve Conway
Senator Jeff Holy 
Representative Brandon Vick 
Representative Shelley Kloba  Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

FROM: Donna Khanhasa, Special Agent 
Licensing Unit 

SUBJECT: Special Olympics of Washington – 2020 Western Washington Enhanced Raffle 
Plan Request 

Special Olympics of Washington (SOWA) is requesting your approval to conduct a “Dream 
House Raffle,” an enhanced raffle in Western Washington. 

In the 2013 Legislative session, the Legislature passed Engrossed Substitute Senate Bill 5723 
authorizing enhanced raffles.  The Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 230-03-152 allows 
the commissioners to vote to approve a bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization whose 
primary purpose is serving individuals with intellectual disabilities, to conduct enhanced raffles 
when they meet the requirements of the law and submit a plan as set out in the rule. 

Mission: 
SOWA’s mission is to provide year-around sports training and athletic competition in a variety 
of Olympic type sports for children and adults with intellectual disabilities, giving them 
continuing opportunities to develop physical fitness, demonstrate courage, experience joy and 
participate in the sharing of gifts, skills and friendship with their families, other Special 
Olympics athletes and the community. 



Commissioners and Ex Officios 
November 14, 2019 
Page 2 of 3 

Programs and Clients Served: 
SOWA currently serves more than 19,500 athletes and has a support system of nearly 10,000 
volunteers.   

Purpose for Conducting the Enhanced Raffle: 
To provide the necessary resources for the organization to enhance its programming and to grow 
its athlete base. 

Enhanced Raffle Details: 
Ticket costs:  $150 each, 3 for $400, or 5 for $550.   
50/50 Add-on tickets are $20 each, 3-pack for $50, or 6-pack for $75.  

Drawing Date Location Prizes Available 
Early Bird 1 March 5, 2020 Western 

Washington – 
King County  

Winner’s choice: TBD* or $70,000 cash 

Early Bird 2 April 2, 2020 Western 
Washington – 
King County  

Winner’s choice:  TBD* or $10,000 cash 

Grand Prize May 8, 2020 Western 
Washington – 
King County  

Grand Prize Dream House, an annuity, or 
onetime cash option. Other prizes include 
cash or merchandise.  

Multi-Ticket May 8, 2020 Western 
Washington – 
King County  

Winner’s choice:  TBD* or $50,000 cash. 

50/50 Add-on 
Drawing 

May 8, 2020 Western 
Washington – 
King County  

Half of the gross proceeds of the 50/50 
Add-on ticket sales.  

*Prizes to be determined after procurement of the house. Final plan to be submitted for
staff approval before the start of the raffle.

Security and Purchase of Prizes: 
All prizes will be purchased with the raffle revenue and awarded after each applicable drawing. 

Protection of the integrity of the raffle: 
SOWA will conduct an audit of ticket stubs prior to each drawing.  The audit will be performed 
by the CEO who will use an Excel generated random list of tickets to audit.  The tickets will be 
made up of the entire population of tickets sold, both active and voided.  The sample size will be 
no less than 90 tickets.  An employee of SOWA will draw all winning raffle tickets. 



Commissioners and Ex Officios 
November 14, 2019 
Page 3 of 3 

All ticket proceeds of the raffle, whether the tickets are sold in the SOWA office by SOWA 
designated staff or through the call center, will be deposited into a SOWA raffle account which 
is separate from the Organization’s general operating funds. 

Use of Proceeds: 
The proceeds will be used to further drive the vision of SOWA.  

Protection in the Event of Low Ticket Sales: 
The law requires that in the event SOWA determines the ticket sales are insufficient to qualify 
for a complete enhanced raffle to move forward, the enhanced raffle winner must receive fifty 
percent of the net proceeds in excess of expenses as the grand prize.  The enhanced raffle winner 
will receive a choice between an annuity value equal to fifty percent of the net proceeds in 
excess of expense paid by annuity over twenty years, or a one-time cash payment of seventy 
percent of the annuity value.  In no case will the grand prize be less than $50,000. Unless, the 
raffle ticket sales fall at or below the breakeven amount of 17,197 tickets sold, and net proceeds 
in excess of expenses produce a negative value, Special Olympics Washington will consider 
refunding all purchases and cancelling the raffle due to insufficient sales of tickets or issuing a 
flat $5,000 to the Grand Prize winner. 

Projected Budget: 
SOWA estimates the breakeven number of ticket sales to be 17,197.  The net proceeds will 
depend upon the grand prize awarded.  SOWA estimates net proceeds to be between $0 and 
$2,060,430 if a $4,140,000 house is the grand prize.   

Dedicated Employee Responsible for Oversight of the Enhanced Raffle Operation: 
Meryl Newman, SOWA Chief Financial Officer, will be overseeing the enhanced raffle 
operation. 

Licensed Service Supplier Managing the Enhanced Raffle: 
NZ Consulting, Inc., owned 100% by Neal Zeavy from Seattle, Washington, is managing the 
enhanced raffle for SOWA.   

Licensed Call Center Contracted to Receive Enhanced Raffle Ticket Sales: 
Hosni Enterprises, LLC, doing business as Cornerstone Administrative Services, owned 100% 
by Melissa Melcher-Hosni, will be the call center contracted to receive enhanced raffle tickets 
sales for SOWA. 

Attachments (2) 



1 
 

 
Special Olympics Washington  

Enhanced Raffle Plan 2020 
“Special Olympics Washington Dream House Raffle” 

 
 
Purpose 
 
The Special Olympics Washington Dream House Raffle will be conducted to provide the necessary resources 
for the organization to enhance its programming and to grow its athlete base.  Currently, Special Olympics 
Washington serves more than 19,500 athletes across the state. However, there are nearly 180,000 individuals 
in Washington State with intellectual disabilities who qualify for our programs. In 2018, the Special Olympics 
USA Games were hosted in Seattle and as a result of the awareness this major event brought to the movement, 
Special Olympics Washington has seen an increase in the number of individuals locally who want to become 
a Special Olympics athlete.  With the funds earned from the “Dream House Raffle,” Special Olympics 
Washington can continue the journey of reaching into every corner of the state to make sure all children and 
adults with intellectual disabilities have the opportunity to achieve their personal best. 
 
About Special Olympics Washington 
 
Special Olympics Washington was incorporated in 1975 and provides year-round programming in sports, 
education and athlete leadership. The organization is the leader in sports, inclusive health, and community 
building, empowering children and adults with intellectual disabilities to be valued on and off the playing field.  
Special Olympics Washington currently serves more than 19,500 athletes and has a support system of more 
than 10,000 volunteers.  The organization is part of Special Olympics International, which serves more than 
5.4 million athletes in more than 190 countries.  Special Olympics Washington is a 501(c)(3) organization in 
Washington State. 
 
MISSION: The mission of Special Olympics is to provide year-round sports training and athletic competition 
in a variety of Olympic type sports for children and adults with intellectual disabilities, giving them continuing 
opportunities to develop physical fitness, demonstrate courage, experience joy and participate in the sharing 
of gifts, skills and friendship with their families, other Special Olympics athletes and the community.   
 
About Our Athletes 
 
Persons with intellectual disabilities, regardless of ability level, may participate in sports and other programs 
offered by Special Olympics Washington. Individuals are eligible for training and competition at age eight and 
there is no upper age limit, with athletes competing into their 70s. Once an athlete joins Special Olympics, they 
typically participate in three sports per year.  Special Olympics becomes a year-round endeavor bringing new 
friends, greater self-esteem and a place for family members to connect.  As a result of the leadership skills, 
confidence and discipline gained through participating in Special Olympics Washington, 50% of our athletes 
are employed vs. only 2% of those who have an intellectual disability who are not involved with Special 
Olympics.   
 
 
 



  

2 
 

 
 
 
 

SPECIAL OLYMPICS WASHINGTON 
Enhanced Raffle Rules 

2020 
 
Special Olympics Washington (SOWA), a tax exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, is conducting this raffle pursuant to SB 5723, Washington Administrative Code 230-03-152, 
to raise funds for ongoing charitable purposes.  The Rules and Regulations of the SOWA raffle are set forth 
below.  By purchasing a raffle ticket, the purchaser agrees to be bound by these rules and regulations.  SOWA’s 
interpretation and application of the rules and regulations shall be final. 
 
The Grand Prize Drawing for Special Olympics Washington Dream House Raffle will be held on Friday, May 
8, 2020 at the Seattle Center, Seattle WA.  All early bird drawings will be held at 2815 2nd Ave, Suite 370, 
Seattle, WA  98121.   Tickets will not be sold after April 24, 2020.  Tickets may sell out before that time. An 
independent raffle auditor will supervise the drawing. The drawing for prizes may be open to the public, but 
the winner does not need to be present to win. 

Only 65,000 tickets will be sold. The chances of winning are based on that number. If fewer tickets are sold, 
the chances of winning the Grand Prize and other prizes improve.  The IRS has taken the position that amounts 
paid for chances in raffles, lotteries or similar drawings for valuable prizes are not gifts, and consequently do 
not qualify as deductible charitable contributions. 
 
The Grand Prize Winner assumes all fees, local, state and federal taxes (including but not limited to income 
taxes based on the value of the prize).  Likewise, there are federal taxes and there may be state and/or local tax 
consequences if the winner selects the alternate cash prize (See Prizes section below). These consequences 
may apply to other prizes as well.  SOWA takes no responsibility for any tax liabilities. Consult your tax 
advisor.  This offer is void where prohibited by law, and all federal, state and local laws and regulations apply.  
 
By entering this raffle, entrants accept and agree (1) to be bound by all the rules, limitations and restrictions 
set forth here and (2) that their names and/or likenesses may be disclosed to and used by the news media and 
may otherwise be used by SOWA for publicity purposes and in lists of prize winners to be published in area 
newspapers and announced on the SOWA raffle website.  SOWA will provide purchasers all raffle information 
as required by WAC 230-11-015.  Other rules and regulations may apply.  Please contact SOWA if you have 
questions.  SOWA’s interpretation and application of the rules and regulations shall be final. 
 
By entering this raffle, each participant releases SOWA, its directors, officers, employees and agents from any 
and all liability for injuries, losses or damages of any kind caused by participating in the raffle or winning any 
prize or resulting from acceptance, possession, use or misuse of any prize, and each winner agrees to indemnify 
and hold SOWA harmless from any and all losses, damages, rights, claims and actions of any kind rising in 
connection with or as a result of participating in the raffle or the winner’s acceptance or use of any prize.  
 
 
Tickets: 
Tickets are $150 each, 3-pack for $400, and5-pack for $550.  Only one method of payment, one name, and one 
mailing address are permitted per ticket pack.  Only one eligible person may be entered in the raffle per ticket 
sold. If the name of more than one person is submitted with a ticket purchase, and that ticket is selected as a 
winning ticket, then the person named first will be deemed the holder of record of that ticket and declared the 



  

3 
 

winner regardless of who paid for the ticket.  Division of prize by a group purchasing a ticket in common shall 
be to the sole responsibility of the person named as the holder of record of that ticket, should that ticket be 
selected as a winner. 
 
Early ticket purchases will be included in up to three drawings.  Tickets purchased by February 21, 2020, will 
be eligible for the Early Bird Drawing 1 (drawing date:  March 5, 2020).  Tickets purchased by March 20 2020, 
will be eligible for the Early Bird Drawing 2 (drawing date:  April 2, 2020).  All such tickets, including all 
winning tickets from Early Bird Drawings, will be included in applicable subsequent drawings as well as the 
Grand Prize Drawing.   Tickets purchased by April 24, 2020, will be eligible for the Grand Prize Drawing 
(drawing date:  May 8, 2020).    
 
50/50 Add-On Tickets are one for $20, 3-pack for $50 or 6-pack for $75. 
Rules for purchasing 50/50 Add-On tickets are as follows: 

• Only one method of payment and only one mailing address are permitted. 
• Only one name can be listed per ticket. 
• 50/50 Add-On Tickets must be ordered at the same time as your Dream House Raffle ticket order.  
• 50/50 Add-On orders will not be accepted after your original raffle ticket order date. 

 
SOWA reserves the right to reject any entry form that is submitted with payment that does not constitute “good 
funds.”  All defective or physically altered entry forms will be immediately disqualified by SOWA. Prior to 
the Grand Prize Drawing, SOWA will make a reasonable effort to notify the individual and/or entity that 
submits such an entry form or one which has been rejected because the credit card or check did not clear that 
the entry has been rejected by attempting to make contact through the information provided at the time of 
submitting the purchase request.   All orders for tickets for the Early Bird Drawings must be received and/or 
purchased by the indicated deadline.   Any orders received after these deadlines will be held for the subsequent 
drawings, if applicable and Grand Prize Drawing.  SOWA assumes no responsibility for lost, late, misdirected 
or non-delivered mail or fax messages, or any other failure to receive orders or deliver receipts prior to the 
drawing deadlines.  
 
A raffle participant's sole and exclusive remedy for SOWA's breach shall be limited to the return of the 
purchase price paid for his or her raffle ticket(s).   In no event shall SOWA, its directors, officers, employees, 
agents or representatives be liable to any party for any loss or injuries to earnings, profits or goodwill, or for 
any incidental, special, punitive or consequential damages of any person or entity whether arising in contract, 
tort or otherwise, even if advised of the possibility of such damages. 
 
How to Purchase:   
To purchase tickets: use the order form provided and fax the order form to TBD, or you may mail it to SOWA 
Dream House Raffle, 2815 2nd Avenue, Suite 370 Seattle, WA  98121 or call TBD, providing your name, 
address, phone number along with your credit card number, credit card security code and expiration date.  
Tickets cannot be purchased on the raffle website or by email.  Any entry form submitted by email will be 
rejected.   All entries must include payment by cash, check, money order or credit card in US dollars. SOWA 
reserves the right to reject any entry form that is submitted with payment that does not constitute "good funds."   
No refunds will be made except under the following circumstances: any ticket order with payment received 
after 65,000 tickets have been sold or after April 24, 2020, will be returned.   No other refunds are available 
except in the exclusive discretion of SOWA.  SOWA assumes no responsibility for lost, late, misdirected or 
non-delivered mail or fax messages, or any other failure to receive orders or deliver receipts prior to the 
drawing deadlines.  
 
Selection of Winners:   
The Special Olympics Washington Dream House Raffle Grand Prize Drawing will be held on May 8, 2020 
from all eligible raffle tickets.  Winners need not be present to win. SOWA will conduct the Early Bird 
drawings on March 5, 2020 (Early Bird Drawing 1) and April 2, 2020 (Early Bird Drawing 2).  The Bonus 



  

4 
 

Multi-Ticket Drawing and 50/50 Add-On Drawing (See Bonus Drawings) will be held on May 8, 2020.  The 
Bonus Multi-Ticket Drawing, 50/50 Add-On Drawing, and Grand Prize Drawing will be held under the 
supervision of an independent raffle auditor.  The Grand Prize Drawing, 50/50 Add-On Drawing, and Multi-
Ticket Drawing, will be held on Friday, May 8, 2020 at the Seattle Center, Seattle WA.  All early bird drawings 
will be held at 2815 2nd Avenue, Suite 370, Seattle, WA  98121.   All drawings may be open to the public or 
available for viewing on television.  Winners will be notified according to the contact information provided to 
SOWA at the time of ticket purchase.  If the grand prize winner cannot be located by 5:00 p.m., May 22, 2020, 
after attempting to make contact through the information provided at the time of purchasing the ticket, such 
winner will be deemed to have elected the onetime cash alternate prize and another winner will not be selected 
for such prize.  In addition to the list of winners posted on the SOWA raffle web site, a list of winners may be 
obtained from SOWA or by sending a self-address, stamped envelope to Special Olympics Washington Dream 
House Raffle, 2815 2nd Avenue, Suite 370, Seattle, WA  98121 within one week of the drawing. 
 
In order to collect prizes valued greater than $4,999, a ticket winner must sign and deliver to SOWA:  (a) a 
sworn affidavit of eligibility in accordance with these Rules and applicable law, including without limitation 
that he or she is at least 18 years old; (b) such written information as is required by any applicable tax and/or 
real estate laws, including without limitation his or her Social Security Number; (c) proof of identity in forms 
satisfactory to the SOWA showing that the person claiming the prize is the same person who is named on the 
winning raffle ticket.; and (d) the winning ticket stub.  Winners of prizes of $5,000 or more may be required 
to submit a W-2G, Form 5754 or similar tax form (provided by SOWA) for tax withholding purposes.  
 
Winning Odds:   
The odds of winning a prize will depend on the number of tickets sold.  If all 65,000 tickets are sold the odds 
of winning the Grand Prize is 1 in 65,000. If fewer tickets are sold, the chance of winning the Grand Prize, 
Early Bird Prizes and all secondary prizes improves.  The odds to win a prize are no less than 1 in 20. 
 
Eligibility:   
Anyone 18 years of age or older may enter.  SOWA employees, members of the Board of Directors, authorized 
agents and employees thereof, consultants, attorneys, independent accountant firm, and their spouses and 
children living in the same household are excluded from participating and are not eligible to win a prize.  All 
federal, state, and local laws and regulations apply.  The raffle is void where prohibited or restricted by law.  
An affidavit of eligibility may be required from prize winners. 
 
 
 
 
Prizes:   
 
The Grand Prize is the home located within the Puget Sound area of Washington, and a detailed description 
will be referred to in all raffle materials.  Alternatively, the Grand Prize winner may elect to receive an annuity 
of $4,000,000 paid over 20 years or a onetime $2,800,000 cash payment (except as stated below) based on 
65,000 tickets sold.  The Grand Prize Winner must make an election in writing between the house, the annuity, 
or the onetime cash payment no later than 5:00 p.m. May 22, 2020.  In the event of circumstances outside of 
the control of SOWA such as but not limited to: fire, earthquake, foreclosure and as determined by SOWA, 
the Grand Prize Winner will instead have no election as stated above and will instead have an election between 
an annuity of $4,000,000 paid over 20 years or a onetime $2,800,000 cash payment (except as stated below).  
A minimum of 62,000 tickets must be sold by April 24, 2020 for the Grand Prize Winner to have a choice of 
the House, the annuity of $4,000,000 paid over 20 years, or a onetime $2,800,000 cash payment alternate prize. 
If fewer than 62,000 tickets are sold by April 24, 2020, the raffle will be held as scheduled, and prizes will be 
awarded as advertised with the exception that the Grand Prize Winner will receive a choice between sum equal 
to 50% of the Net Raffle Proceeds paid as an annuity over 20 years, not to exceed $4,000,000 or a onetime 
cash payment of 70% of the annuity value, not to exceed $2,800,000. Net Raffle Proceeds will be calculated 



  

5 
 

based on SOWA accounting, which shall be final and conclusive with respect to the Grand Prize Winner. For 
these purposes “Net Raffle Proceeds” are defined as the balance of funds left after paying all other prizes, all 
raffle expenses and all expenses for the House.  SOWA will estimate the final prize (“Estimate Prize”) just 
prior to the Grand Prize drawing so as to award 90% of the estimated prize payment.  No later than 120 days 
from the drawing date, SOWA will verify that all expenses have been accounted for and a final net amount 
will be calculated (“Actual Prize”). SOWA will issue a final check to the Grand Prize winner based on the 
difference between the Actual Prize and the Estimated Prize payment along with an updated W-2G. 
 
All vehicles come base model factory equipped and winner(s) are also solely responsible for any and all state 
or local license, title, registration, cost differential between the value of the car and the cash alternate prize, 
taxes, or fees associated with the vehicle, as well as insurance (proof of which must be shown prior to delivery) 
and pickup or delivery costs at the dealership as well as any non-standard options chosen by the winner and 
negotiated with the dealership. All winners of vehicles must make an election in writing between the vehicle 
and the alternative cash payment no later than 5:00 p.m. on the fifth business day after the drawing.  All 
contracted vehicles are subject to availability at the automobile dealer selected by SOWA and may be 
substituted with a comparable vehicle by SOWA or with the cash alternate prize. 
 
Vacation travel prizes are for two economy round trip tickets from any continental US airport to the destination 
city and for one double occupancy standard hotel room in the destination city unless otherwise noted on the 
raffle website.  Please note that some vacation travel is for land only and does not include airfare.  All vacation 
and travel prizes are subject to space and availability. All gratuities, taxes and fees are the responsibility of the 
winner. Winners of travel related prizes must comply with all applicable requirements and restrictions related 
to said prizes including without limitation applicable travel dates, age restrictions, liability waivers, travel 
documentation and reservation and confirmation procedures.  All contracted vacations are subject to 
availability and may be substituted with a comparable vacation prize or with a cash alternate prize. 
 
All unclaimed prizes will be returned to Special Olympics Washington 60 days after the Grand prize drawing 
date. 
 
Early Bird Drawings: 
 
Early Bird Drawing 1 
Winner's choice between TBD or $70,000 cash* 
 
Early Bird Drawing 2 
Winner's choice between TBD or $10,000 cash* 
 
Grand Prize Drawing:  
 
Grand Prize:  The Dream House TBD or $4,000,000 annuity or $2,800,000 cash option* 
2nd Prize:  Winner’s choice between TBD or $50,000 cash* 
3rd Prize: TBD or $10,000 cash* 
4th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash * 
5th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
6th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
7th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
8th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
9th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
10th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
 
Prizes 11-3,250 TBD 
*Except as stated above 



  

6 
 

 
Bonus Drawing: 
Multi-Ticket Drawing 
Prize: Winner's choice between TBD or $50,000 
Any individual who buys three or more tickets will be entered into the Multi-Ticket Drawing, subject to the 
following; to be eligible entrants must purchase three or more tickets during the same purchase, using one 
method of payment, using the same name on each ticket, and the same mailing address for each eligible ticket. 
For each eligible ticket purchased, a corresponding eligible ticket will be added into the Multi-Ticket Drawing. 
Three tickets purchased will have three tickets entered into the Multi-Ticket Drawing. Four tickets purchased 
will have four tickets entered into the Multi-Ticket Drawing, etc. Multiple tickets purchased at the same time 
are eligible for discounts. Multiple tickets can be purchased individually or a 3-pack for $400, or 5-pack for 
$550. 
 
50/50 Add-On Drawing: 
Prize:  Winner will be awarded 50% of the gross proceeds of the 50/50 Add On raffle.   
50/50 Add-On Tickets are one for $20, 3-pack for $50 or 6-pack for $75.   
Rules for purchasing 50/50 Add-On tickets are as follows: 

• Only one method of payment and only one mailing address are permitted. 
• Only one name can be listed per ticket. 
• 50/50 Add-On Tickets must be ordered at the same time as your Dream House Raffle ticket order.  
• 50/50 Add-On orders will not be accepted after your original raffle ticket order date. 

 
General Terms and Conditions:   
No express warranties are given and no affirmation of SOWA by words and/or actions will constitute a 
warranty.  The House, if selected, will be transferred to the Grand Prize Winner “as is, where is, and with all 
faults”. SOWA does not provide any guarantee or warranty, expressed or implied, in connection with the House 
and accepts no liability or responsibility regarding the construction or condition of the House. SOWA does not 
warrant that the house is of mercantile quality or that it can be used for any particular purpose.  No express 
warranties are given and no affirmation of SOWA by words and/or actions will constitute a warranty.   
 
At the time of closing, all federal and state income taxes based on the value of the House will be due from the 
Grand Prize Winner. If the Grand Prize Winner selects the annuity or the onetime cash payment as well as 
winners of Early Bird Prizes, Multi-Ticket Prize, 50/50 Add-On Prize, and Secondary Prizes of $5,000 or more, 
all appropriate and required federal and state taxes will be withheld by SOWA in accordance with federal and 
state law and SOWA will remit the balance of the cash prizes to the winners. SOWA makes no guarantee that 
the Grand Prize Winner will be able to sell the House for the value of TBD nor is there any guarantee that the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) will accept that value of the house for the purpose of determining any income 
tax that may be due from the winner. SOWA takes no responsibility for any tax liabilities. Consult your tax 
advisor.  
 
Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to the contract, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by 
binding arbitration administered by the American Arbitration Association (pursuant to its expedited 
procedures) under its Commercial Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator 
may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 
 

  



  

7 
 

 

C (i)  Dates of raffle and drawing: 
January 21 –  Start date 
February 21 –  Early Bird 1 deadline 
March 5 –  Early Bird 1 drawing  
March 20 –  Early Bird 2 deadline 
April 2 –  Early Bird 2 drawing 
April 24 –  Grand Prize Deadline 
May 8 –  Grand Prize, Multi-Ticket, and 50/50 Add-On Drawings 
 

 
C(ii)  Cost of raffle ticket: 
Tickets are $150 each, or 3-tickets for $400, or 5 tickets for $550 
50/50 Add-On Tickets are one for $20, 3-pack for $50 or 6-pack for $75.   
 
 
C(iii)  Prizes available: 

Grand Prize:  The Dream House TBD or $4,000,000 annuity or $2,800,000 cash option* 
2nd Prize:  Winner’s choice between TBD or $50,000 cash* 
3rd Prize: TBD or $10,000 cash* 
4th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash * 
5th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
6th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
7th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
8th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
9th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
10th Prize: TBD or $5,000 cash* 
 
Prizes 11-3,250 TBD 
 
*Except as stated above 
 

 
 
Bonus Drawings: 
Multi-Ticket Drawing 
Prize:  TBD or $50,000 cash 
 
50/50 Add-On Drawing 
Prize:  50% the gross proceeds of the 50/50 Add On raffle 
 

C(iv)  Security of prizes: 
Prizes including cash, vacations, and cars, which will be purchased and awarded after each 
applicable drawing with raffle revenue, thus prizes don’t need to be protected since they are 
not being purchased prior to the raffle drawing.  Add-On Sales will be recorded in a separate 
account code based on the sales report/ticket ledger and deposited into the main Raffle bank 
account.  50% of the sales of Add-On tickets will be distributed to the 50/50 raffle winner. 

 
 

C(v)  Plans for selling raffle tickets: 
Raffle tickets will be sold via phone, fax, mail, and in person. 



  

8 
 

Please refer to the Raffle Ticket Process document attachment (Attachment A) 
 

       C(vi)  Description of how the integrity of the raffle will be protected: 
Special Olympics WA will conduct an audit of ticket stubs prior to each drawing.   The audit 
will be performed by the CEO who will use an Excel generated random list of tickets to audit.  
The tickets will be made up of the entire population of tickets sold, both active and voided.  
The sample size will be no less than 90 tickets. 
 
All ticket purchase proceeds of the raffle, whether the tickets are sold in the SOWA office by 
SOWA designated staff or through the call center, will be deposited into a Special Olympics 
WA raffle account which is separate from the Organization’s general operating funds. 
 
An employee of Special Olympics WA will draw all winning raffle tickets. 
 

d)   Explanation of how the proceeds from the raffle will be used: 
Funds will be used to further drive the vision of Special Olympics Washington as described on page 1 
of this document. 

 
e) Plan to protect the licensee in the event of low ticket sales and other risks: 

In the event the bona fide charitable or nonprofit organization determines ticket sales are insufficient 
to qualify for a complete enhanced raffle to move forward, the enhanced raffle winner must receive 
fifty percent of the net proceeds in excess of expenses as the grand prize.  The enhanced raffle winner 
will receive a choice between an annuity value equal to fifty percent of the net proceeds in excess of 
expense paid by annuity over 20 years, or a one-time cash payment of seventy percent of the annuity 
value.  In no case will the Grand Prize be less than $50,000. Unless, the raffle ticket sales fall at or 
below the breakeven amount of 17,197 tickets sold, and net proceeds in excess of expenses produce a 
negative value, Special Olympics Washington will consider refunding all purchases and cancelling the 
raffle due to insufficient sales of tickets or issuing a flat $5,000 to the Grand Prize winner. 

 
f)  Explanation of how the prize(s) will be purchased for the raffle: 

Cash prizes are offered from the sale of raffle tickets.  Non-cash prizes, such as vacations and cars will 
be purchased if the winner chooses such prize in lieu of cash.   
 

g) Projected budget includes the following – (Attachment B) 
(i) Estimated gross gambling receipts, expenses, and net income for the raffle  
(ii) Corresponding sales and prize levels with projected revenues and expenses for each level.  
(iii) Minimum and maximum prizes available. 

 
 

 
h) SOWA’s dedicated employee is Meryl Newman. 
i) NZ Consulting Inc. will be the licensed service supplier 
j) Hosni Enterprises LLC will be our licensed Call Center 
k) Raffle Ticket Process Document (Attachment A) 



SPECIAL OLYMPICS WA
WSGC Ticket Sales
2020
U:\FIU\All Licensees\S\Special Olympics - WA\2020\05-08-2020 Dream House Raffle\[Attachmen        

Breakeven

Annuity 
$300k/Lump 
Sum $210k 

GP

$4M 
Annuity or 

$2.8M Lump 
sum GP House GP

Total # of Tickets 19,542         25,364            72,000         72,000         

Average Price/ticket 110$            110$               110$            110$            

GROSS SALES 2,149,620    2,790,040       7,920,000    7,920,000    

Expenses:
Advertising 606,765       606,765          606,765       606,765       
Professional Fees 344,557       432,222          1,135,040    1,135,040    
Postage 525,916       525,916          525,916       525,916       
Personnel 71,079         71,079            71,079         71,079         
Sales Expense 72,260         72,260            72,260         72,260         
Prize Expense 465,000       465,000          465,000       465,000       
Regulatory Expense 14,043         16,797            36,800         36,800         
TOTAL EXPENSE 2,099,620    2,190,040       2,912,860    2,912,860    

NET INCOME BEFORE GP 50,000         600,000          5,007,140    5,007,140    

Grand Prize - Annuity N/A 300,000          4,000,000    N/A

Grand Prize - Lump Sum 50,000         210,000          2,800,000    N/A

Net to SOWA - Lump Sum Pymt (0)                 390,000          2,207,140    N/A

Net to SOWA - Annuity N/A 360,000          1,807,140    N/A

Grand Prize - House N/A N/A N/A 4,140,000    

Net to SOWA - House Option N/A N/A N/A 867,140       



Washington State Gambling Commission
Program Review

AmVets Tacoma #00001

Part I

Licens i ng/Orga n ization lnformation
For Fiscal Year Ended
December 31 ,2018

Name/Address
AmVets #00001
5717 South Tyler St.
Tacoma, WA 98409

MEMBERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

42 Active voting members
7 Officers and 13 Board members (20 total)
12 Monthly Board meetings were conducted during the 2A18 fiscal year
12 General membership meetings were held during the 2018 fiscal year
Board member election was held on May 10,2018

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION

Description
Bingo
Raffle
Non-profit Pull Tab
Non-profit Card Room

Exp.Date
6t30t2020
6t30t2020
6t30t2020
6/3at2020

License Number(s)
01-01001
02-00507
05-00616
60-00063

Organizational Purpose and Structure

Statement of Purpose

AmVets Tacpma is a non-profit organization established to encourage fellowship among all
veterans and to keep the public forever reminded that veterans fought or served to preserve
peace.

Their mission & stated purpose is to encourage fellowship among all American veterans and those
currently serving in the Armed Forces of the United States. To ensure the orderly return of
veterans to civilian life, to expedite and assist in the rehabilitation of veterans, to act as a liaison
agenl between the veterans and the government and to remind the public that American veterans
fought and served to preserve peace, liberty and democracy for their nation.

Charitable/Nonprofi t Seruices

During 2018, Amvets Tacoma expended $581,991 for program services that included, in part, the
following:

r Served 4,133 clients filing 805 claims resulting in recovery awards (veteran's benefits) of
$3,764,812.



Donated funds, volunteer services, anO state of ine
Hospital and Madigan Medical Center that are not included in the Department of Veteran's
Affairs budget for military spending.
Donated 1,300 square feet of office space within their building to the Veteran's Service
Office, including utilities equaling $tT,160.
Donated $10,000 to the Veteran's Service Office for operating expenses.
Donated hall space to other charitable/non-profit and veteran's organizations for various
functions as well as the Tacoma public schools for ROTC programs and the Puget Sound
Healthcare for social events for disabled persons.

Part ll
Staff Findings

During our review of AmVets Tacoma, numerous steps were taken to ensure they are
functioning in accordance with their Bylaws and continue to meet the definition of a
charitable or nonprofit organization under the RCW. This was done in part by reviewing:
board meeting minutes, program services, financial statements, internal conirols, and
payroll for reasonable wages, the use of funds and assets and contracts for
reasonableness. We verified their programs exist and are being supported and they made
significant progress towards their stated purpose.

Based on our review, we determined AmVets Tacoma was in compliance with all WACs
and RCWs during their fiscal year ending December 31 ,2018 and is suitable for continued
licensure.

Prepared By:
Greg Allen, Special Agent
Regulation Unit

iDate:

i il/)ilt1
Signature:

S*



STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

TO: COMMISSIONERS  

Bud Sizemore, Chair   

Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair 

Christopher Stearns  

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  

Senator Steve Conway

Senator Jeff Holy 

Representative Brandon Vick 

Representative Shelley Kloba Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

FROM:       Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

Tyson Wilson, Special Agent 

SUBJECT:  Sports Gambling Update – November 2019 

This memo continues our sports gambling updates first submitted to you in June 2018. Below is an 

updated sports gambling summary for our November 14, 2019 Commission Meeting:   

Federal 

The federal government indicted twenty defendants, including members of the Colombo organized crime 

family, with racketeering, extortion, loansharking, and attempted sports bribery relating to scheme to fix a 
NCAA men’s basketball game in 2018. 

Sports Leagues 

FOX Bet and Major League Baseball (MLB) announced an agreement for FOX Bet to be an “Authorized 

Gaming Operator” for MLB. FOX Bet joins MGM, DraftKings, and FanDuel as MLB’s authorized 

gaming operators and can now use MLB’s official data feed and league trademarks for its gambling 

products.  Earlier this year, the Stars Group and Fox Sports partnered to launch FOX Bet. 

William Hill and the National Basketball Association (NBA) announced an agreement for William Hill to 

be an “Authorized Gaming Operator” for the NBA. William Hill joins MGM and FanDuel as NBA 

authorized gaming operators and this agreement allows William Hill to use the NBA’s official data feed 

and league trademarks for its gambling products. 

William Hill and the Monumental Sports announced an agreement for William Hill to be the exclusive 

sports gambling partner for the Washington Wizards, Capitals, and Mystics who play at Capital One 

Arena in Washington, D.C. William Hill will also build a sportsbook in the arena. 

DraftKings and the National Football League announced an agreement for DraftKings to be the official 

daily fantasy partner of the NFL.  This deal gives DraftKings exclusive sponsorship in the Daily Fantasy 

Sports market and allows DraftKings to use the NFL’s trademarks for its fantasy sports products.  



Commissioner Sports Gambling Update 

November 2019 

Page 2 
 

 

Sports Leagues cont… 

The Indianapolis Colts and FanDuel announced an agreement for FanDuel to be the official daily fantasy 

sports partner of the Colts. The agreement will allow both parties to access to their customers through a 

range of marketing channels, including: in-stadium digital signage; in-game digital, radio, and TV 

promotions. 

States 

Arkansas, Delaware, Indiana, Iowa, Mississippi, New Jersey, New York, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, 

Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, and West Virginia currently offer opportunities for regulated sports 

gambling, including land-based and online offerings.   

Additionally, Colorado, Illinois, New Hampshire, Maine, Montana, North Carolina, Tennessee, and 

Washington, D.C. have authorized sports gambling and most states are looking to begin operations in 

2019-2020.   

Ohio, Massachusetts, and Michigan are the primary states still considering passage of sports gambling 

bills in 2019. Here is an update, where possible, for current operating states (all numbers are 

approximate):  

Delaware – Sports gambling started in the state on June 5, 2018.  The state Lottery is the 

primary regulator.  Sports gambling is only offered at 3 land-based racetracks and casinos, and 

these are joint operations by the state through a vendor.  The allocation of net revenues are 

12.5% to the vendors (Scientific Games, William Hill, and StadiumTech) and the remaining 

87.5% of net revenues are allocated 50% to the state, 40% to the racetrack/casinos, and 10% to 

horse racing purses. In September, $11.8 million was wagered resulting in $2.1 million in gross 

revenue.  There was $1 million in revenue to the state.  

 

New Jersey – Sports gambling started in the state on June 14, 2018.  The Casino Control 

Commission is the primary licensing authority and Attorney General’s Division of Gaming 

Enforcement (DGE) is the primary regulator.  There are currently 10 land-based and 13 online 

operators offering sports gambling. Its land-based gross revenues are taxed at 9.75% and 

mobile and online revenues are taxed at 13%. In September, $445.5 million was wagered 

resulting in $37.8 million in gross revenue.  There was $5 million in tax revenue. 

 

Mississippi – Sports gambling started in the state on August 1, 2018. The Gaming Commission 

is the primary regulator, and gross revenues are taxed at 12%. 23 of the 28 state casinos 

currently offered sports gambling. In September, $37.8 million was wagered resulting is $5.6 

million in gross revenue.  There was $675,790 in tax revenue. 

 

West Virginia – Sports gambling started in the state on September 1, 2018.  The state Lottery is 

the primary regulator for that state’s 5 licensed race racetrack/casinos, and gross revenues are 

taxed at 10%.  In September, $27.5 million wagered for $4.1 million in gross revenue.  There 

was $411,946 in tax revenue. 

 

 

 



Commissioner Sports Gambling Update 

November 2019 

Page 3 
 

 

States cont… 

Rhode Island – Sports gambling started in the state on November 26, 2018.  Online/mobile 

betting started September 4, 2019.  The Rhode Island state lottery operates sports betting at two  

state-run operations using IGT and William Hill as vendors.  The allocation of net revenues are 

51% to the state; 32% to the Vendor (IGT); and 17% to the casino. In September, $22.1 million 

was wagered resulting in $2.5 in gross revenue. There was $1.28 million in state revenue. 

 

Pennsylvania – Sports gambling started in the state in December 2018. The state gaming 

control board is the primary regulator. There are 9 casino locations with 4 online operators 

currently. Pennsylvania has a $10 million sports wagering licensing fee and gross revenue are 

taxed at 36%. In September, there was $194 million wagered for $19.3 million in gross 

revenue.  There was $5.2 million in tax revenue. 

 

Nevada – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator. Gross revenues are taxed at 

6.75% and sports gambling can occur at the state’s approximately 190 licensed locations and 

through mobile and internet platforms. In September, $546.3 million was wagered resulting in 

$52 million in gross revenue. There was $3.5 million in tax revenue. 

 

Iowa - The Iowa Racing and Gaming Commission is the primary regulator. Sports gambling 

started in the state on August 15, 2019.  There are 19 commercial casinos, $45,000 license fee, 

gross revenues are taxed at 6.75%, and both retail and online wagering is allowed. In 

September, $38.5 million was wagered for $4.9 million in gross revenue. There was $334,553 

in tax revenue. 

 

Indiana – The Indiana Gaming Commission is the primary regulator. Sports gambling started 

in the state on September 1, 2019.  There are 13 commercial casinos, $100,000/$50,000 initial 

license fee, gross revenues are taxed at 9.5%, and both retail and online wagering is allowed. In 

September, $35.2 million was wagered for $8.5 million in gross revenue. There was $813,103 

in tax revenue. 

 

Oregon – The Oregon Lottery is the primary state operator/regulator and have partnered with 

SB Tech to run the online sportsbook. The state launched its online sportsbook through its 

“Oregon Lottery Scoreboard” app on October 17, 2019. Anyone can download the app but you 

can only place wagers within the borders of Oregon and outside federally recognized Oregon 

Tribal reservations. All U.S. and international professional sports are offered but no collegiate 

games are offered at this time. 

 

Montana – The Montana Lottery is the primary state operator/regulator and have partnered 

with Intralot to offer sports gambling through up to 1,400 kiosks placed throughout the state. 

The lottery has published proposed rules that would allow for kiosks to accept wagers on 

college and professional sports events. There will also be a mobile phone app that will allow 

you to place wagers within a close distance of the lottery kiosks and remote registration will be 

authorized.  There also is a self-exclusion process and the lottery is targeting an end-of-year 

launch.  The Montana Lottery hopes to pass the proposed rules at their November 21st meeting. 

 



Commissioner Sports Gambling Update 

November 2019 

Page 4 
 

 

Tribal Governments 

There are no new updates this month. 

Commercial Operators 

Flutter Entertainment, owners of Paddy Power Betfair, FanDuel, TVG, announced the acquisition of the 

Stars Group, owners of FOX Bet, Poker Stars, and Sky Bet, for $6 billion. This deal will likely need 

approval by regulators since both are publicly traded companies and would make the new company the 

largest online gambling company in the world. 

MGM and Yahoo Sports, Yahoo was acquired by Verizon in 2017, announced a partnership where 

MGM/GVC joint venture Roar Digital will integrate its BetMGM sports gambling platform into Yahoo 

Sports’ online website and app. Yahoo Sports runs a popular fantasy sports and sports information 

platform and will also be the official digital media sports partner for MGM Resorts. Beginning in 

November, a Yahoo Sports app will see lines, odds, and other sports gambling content with prompts 

directing them to the BetMGM platform for legal sports wagers, where legal. 

DraftKings and Pepsi announced a partnership to create the Pepsi Live Prediction Challenge that is 

available on the DraftKings Sportsbook website and app. The contest is advertised as a free game where 

registered players pick certain in-game outcomes every NFL weekend to earn points for a chance at a 

weekly $5,000 maximum prize and possible grand prize trip to the Super Bowl in Miami. 

Sportradar announced it acquired the company Optima who is a sports gambling and online gaming 

platform and technology supplier to regulated sportsbooks around the world. This acquisition will allow 

Sportradar to become a full service supplier of data, betting, trading and player management platform 

services. 

Google lifted its ban on gambling advertisements and will now allow online sports gambling websites in 

Indiana, Iowa, Montana, Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island along with previously permitted states of 

Nevada, New Jersey, and West Virginia. 



July 25, 
2019

PHASE 1
Sept thru Dec 

2019

WSGC & HCA 
establish 

Interagency 
Agreement for use 
of proviso funding

HCA Contracts 
with Facilitator     

Feb-May 
2020

PHASE 2
Jan 2020  thru Oct 2020

First Task Force 
Meeting Jan 6, 2020

Task Force meets quarterly to create report & 
list of recommendations (6-8 meetings)

Final Report 
due to 

Legislature:
11/30/2021

Timeline – Problem Gambling Task Force 

10/17/2019 
rev

Interim 
Report due to 

Legislature:
11/1/2020

PHASE 3
Nov 2020 thru 
Nov 2021




	Agenda
	Tab 1 Minutes
	Tab 1 License Report
	Tab 1 Proposed 2020 schedule
	Tab 1 Director's Report
	Tab 1 House-Banked Summary Report
	Comm Stearns
	Senator Jeff Holy
	Centennial Accord
	Tab 2 Dotson
	Tab 3 Means
	Tab 4 Raffle Rules
	Tab 5 Wager Limits
	Tab 6 Financial Update
	Tab 7 SOWA
	Tab 8 AmVets of Tacoma
	Tab 9 Sports Gambling 
	Tab 10 PGTF



